SwedPop Documentation

Cause of Death – Code Scheme

Version: June 29, 2021

Contents

General information	3
I Certain infectious and parasitic diseases	
II Neoplasms	
III Diseases of the blood and blood-forming organs and certain disorders involving the in	ımune
mechanism	7
IV Endocrine, nutritional and metabolic diseases	7
V Mental and behavioural disorders	8
VI Diseases of the nervous system	8
VII Diseases of the eye and adnexa	9
VIII Diseases of the ear and mastoid process	9
IX Diseases of the circulatory system	10
X Diseases of the respiratory system	11
XI Diseases of the digestive system	12
XII Diseases of the skin and subcutaneous tissue	13
XIII Diseases of the musculoskeletal system and connective tissue	14
XIV Diseases of the genitourinary system	15
XV Pregnancy, childbirth and the puerperium	16
XVI Certain conditions originating in the perinatal period	16
XVII Congenital malformations, deformations and chromosomal abnormalities	17
XVIII Symptoms, signs and abnormal clinical and laboratory findings, not elsewhere clas	sified 18
XIX Injury, poisoning and certain other consequences of external causes	19
XX External causes of morbidity and mortality	21
XXI Factors influencing health status and contact with health services	

General information

This document describes the code scheme for cause of death.

The column Extended is marked with a yes when the code is an expansion or adaption of the ICD- 10 code system.

I Certain infectious and parasitic diseases

Code	Description	Extended
A00	Cholera	
A01	Typhoid and paratyphoid fevers	
A02	Other salmonella infections	
A03	Shigellosis	
A04	Other bacterial intestinal infections	Yes
A05	Other bacterial foodborne intoxications, not elsewhere classified	
A06	Amoebiasis	
A07	Other protozoal intestinal diseases	
A08	Viral and other specified intestinal infections	
A09	Other gastroenteritis and colitis of infectious and unspecified origin	
A15	Respiratory tuberculosis, bacteriologically and histologically confirmed	
A16	Respiratory tuberculosis, not confirmed bacteriologically or histologically, Tuberculous pleurisy, Respiratory tuberculosis NOS, Tuberculosis NOS	
A17	Tuberculosis of nervous system	
A18	Tuberculosis of other organs	
A19	Miliary tuberculosis	
A20	Plague	
A22	Anthrax	
A24	Glanders and meliodosis	
A28	Other zoonotic bacterial diseases, not elsewhere classified	
A30	Leprosy [Hansen disease]	
A33	Tetanus neonatorum	
A34	Obstetrical tetanus	
A35	Other tetanus	
A36	Diphtheria	
A37	Whooping cough	
A38	Scarlet fever	
A39	Meningococcal infection	
A40	Streptococcal sepsis	
A41	Other sepsis	Yes
A42	Actinomycosis	
A46	Erysipelas	
A48	Other bacterial diseases, not elsewhere classified	
A49	Bacterial infection of unspecified site	
A50	Congenital syphilis	
A51	Early syphilis	

A52	Late syphilis	
A53	Other and unspecified syphilis	
A54	Gonococcal infection	
A57	Chancroid	
A58	Granuloma inguinale	
A63	Other predominantly sexually transmitted diseases, not elsewhere classified	
A64	Unspecified sexually transmitted disease	
A68	Relapsing fevers	
A69	Other spirochaetal infections	
A75	Typhus fever	
A79	Other rickettsioses	
A80	Acute poliomyelitis	
A82	Rabies	
A85	Other viral encephalitis, not elsewhere classified, Encephalitis lethargica	
A86	Unspecified viral encephalitis	
A89	Unspecified viral infection of central nervous system	
A94	Unspecified arthropod-borne viral fever	
A95	Yellow fever	
A98	Other viral haemorrhagic fevers, not elsewhere classified	
A99	Unspecified viral haemorrhagic fever	
B00	Herpesviral [herpes simplex] infections	
B01	Varicella [chickenpox]	
B02	Zoster [herpes zoster]	
B03	Smallpox	
B05	Measles	
B06	Rubella [German measles]	
B08	Other viral infections characterized by skin and mucous membrane lesions, not elsewhere classified	
B09	Unspecified viral infection characterized by skin and mucous membrane lesions	
B15	Acute hepatitis A	
B16	Acute hepatitis B	
B17	Other acute viral hepatitis	
B18	Chronic viral hepatitis	
B19	Unspecified viral hepatitis	
B26	Mumps	
B27	Infectious mononucleosis	
B30	Viral conjunctivitis	
B33	Other viral diseases, not elsewhere classified	
B34	Viral infection of unspecified site	
B48	Other mycoses, not elsewhere classified	
B49	Unspecified mycosis	
B54	Unspecified malaria	
B55	Leishmaniasis	Yes
B56	African trypanosomiasis	

B68	Taeniasis	
B70	Diphyllobothriasis and sparganosis	
B74	Filariasis	
B75	Trichinellosis	
B77	Ascariasis	
B83	Other helminthiases	
B85	Pediculosis and phthiriasis	
B86	Scabies	
B88	Other infestations	
B99	Other and unspecified infectious diseases	Yes

II Neoplasms

Code	Description	Extended
C00	Malignant neoplasm of lip	
C01	Malignant neoplasm of base of tongue	
C02	Malignant neoplasm of other and unspecified parts of tongue	
C05	Malignant neoplasm of palate	
C06	Malignant neoplasm of other and unspecified parts of mouth	
C07	Malignant neoplasm of parotid gland	
C09	Malignant neoplasm of tonsil	
C13	Malignant neoplasm of hypopharynx	
C14	Malignant neoplasm of other and ill-defined sites in the lip, oral cavity and pharynx	
C15	Malignant neoplasm of oesophagus	
C16	Malignant neoplasm of stomach	
C17	Malignant neoplasm of small intestine	
C18	Malignant neoplasm of colon	
C20	Malignant neoplasm of rectum	
C21	Malignant neoplasm of anus and anal canal	
C22	Malignant neoplasm of liver and intrahepatic bile ducts	
C23	Malignant neoplasm of gallbladder	
C24	Malignant neoplasm of other and unspecified parts of biliary tract	
C25	Malignant neoplasm of pancreas	
C26	Malignant neoplasm of other and ill-defined digestive organs	Yes
C30	Malignant neoplasm of nasal cavity and middle ear	
C31	Malignant neoplasm of accessory sinuses	
C32	Malignant neoplasm of larynx	
C33	Malignant neoplasm of trachea	
C34	Malignant neoplasm of bronchus and lung	
C37	Malignant neoplasm of thymus	
C38	Malignant neoplasm of heart, mediastinum and pleura	
C39	Malignant neoplasm of other and ill-defined sites in the respiratory system and intrathoracic organs	Yes
C40	Malignant neoplasm of bone and articular cartilage of limbs	

C41	Malignant neoplasm of bone and articular cartilage of other and unspecified sites	
C43	Malignant melanoma of skin	
C44	Other malignant neoplasms of skin	
C45	Mesothelioma	
C46	Kaposi sarcoma, Kaposi sarcoma of multiple organs or unspecified.	
C47	Malignant neoplasm of peripheral nerves and autonomic nervous system	
C48	Malignant neoplasm of retroperitoneum and peritoneum	
C50	Malignant neoplasm of breast	Yes
C51	Malignant neoplasm of vulva	
C52	Malignant neoplasm of vagina	
C53	Malignant neoplasm of cervix uteri	
C54	Malignant neoplasm of corpus uteri	
C55	Malignant neoplasm of uterus, part unspecified	
C56	Malignant neoplasm of ovary	
C57	Malignant neoplasm of other and unspecified female genital organs	
C58	Malignant neoplasm of placenta	
C60	Malignant neoplasm of penis	
C61	Malignant neoplasm of prostate	
C62	Malignant neoplasm of testis	
C63	Malignant neoplasm of other and unspecified male genital organs	
C64	Malignant neoplasm of kidney, except renal pelvis	
C65	Malignant neoplasm of renal pelvis	
C66	Malignant neoplasm of ureter	
C67	Malignant neoplasm of bladder	
C68	Malignant neoplasm of other and unspecified urinary organs	Yes
C69	Malignant neoplasm of eye and adnexa	
C70	Malignant neoplasm of meninges	
C71	Malignant neoplasm of brain	Yes
C72	Malignant neoplasm of spinal cord, cranial nerves and other parts of central nervous system	
C73	Malignant neoplasm of thyroid gland	
C74	Malignant neoplasm of adrenal gland	
C75	Malignant neoplasm of other endocrine glands and related structures	
C76	Malignant neoplasm of other and ill-defined sites	
C77	Secondary and unspecified malignant neoplasm of lymph nodes	
C78	Secondary malignant neoplasm of respiratory and digestive organs	
C79	Secondary malignant neoplasm of other and unspecified sites	
C80	Malignant neoplasm, without specification of site	Yes
C83	Non-follicular lymphoma, Lymphoid granulomatosis	
C85	Other and unspecified types of non-Hodgkin lymphoma	
C90	Multiple myeloma and malignant plasma cell neoplasms	
C91	Lymphoid leukaemia	
C92	Myeloid leukaemia	
C95	Leukaemia of unspecified cell type	

C96	Other and unspecified malignant neoplasms of lymphoid, haematopoietic and related tissue	
D11	Benign neoplasm of major salivary glands	
D17	Benign lipomatous neoplasm	
D21	Other benign neoplasms of connective and other soft tissue	
D25	Leiomyoma of uterus	
D26	Other benign neoplasms of uterus	
D41	Neoplasm of uncertain or unknown behaviour of urinary organs	
D44	Neoplasm of uncertain or unknown behaviour of endocrine glands	
D45	Polycythaemia vera	
D48	Neoplasm of uncertain or unknown behaviour of other and unspecified sites	Yes

III Diseases of the blood and blood-forming organs and certain disorders involving the immune mechanism

Code	Description	Extended
D51	Vitamin B12 deficiency anaemia	
D64	Other anaemias	
D66	Hereditary factor VIII deficiency	
D69	Purpura and other haemorrhagic conditions	
D70	Agranulocytosis	
D73	Diseases of spleen	
D75	Other diseases of blood and blood-forming organs	
D86	Sarcoidosis	

IV Endocrine, nutritional and metabolic diseases

Code	Description	Extended
E03	Other hypothyroidism	
E05	Thyrotoxicosis [hyperthyroidism]	
E06	Thyroiditis	
E07	Other disorders of thyroid	
E10	Type 1 diabetes mellitus	
E27	Other adrenocortical overactivity	
E32	Diseases of thymus	
E50	Vitamin A deficiency	
E51	Thiamine deficiency	
E54	Ascorbic acid deficiency	
E55	Vitamin D deficiency	
E63	Other nutritional deficiencies	
E65	Localized adiposity	
E66	Obesity	
E78	Disorders of lipoprotein metabolism and other lipidaemias	
E80	Disorders of porphyrin and bilirubin metabolism	

E85	Amyloidosis	
E90	Illdefined cause, probably related to nutritional problems	Yes

V Mental and behavioural disorders

Code	Description	Extended
F01	Vascular dementia, arteriosclerotic dementia, Multi-infarct dementia	
F03	Unspecified dementia	
F05	Delirium, not induced by alcohol and other psychoactive substances	
F09	Unspecified organic or symptomatic mental disorder	
F10	Mental and behavioural disorders due to use of alcohol	
F11	Mental and behavioural disorders due to use of opioids	
F20	Schizophrenia	
F22	Persistent delusional disorders	
F23	Acute and transient psychotic disorders	
F30	Manic episode	
F31	Bipolar affective disorder	
F32	Depressive episode	
F39	Unspecified mood [affective] disorder	
F44	Dissociative [conversion] disorders	
F45	Somatoform disorders	
F48	Other neurotic disorders	
F53	Mental and behavioural disorders associated with the puerperium, not elsewhere classified, Puerperal psychosis NOS, Depression postpartum NOS, depression postnatal NOS.	
F60	Specific personality disorders	
F84	Pervasive developmental disorders, Childhood autism, Asperger syndrome	
F95	Tic disorders	
F99	Mental disorder, not otherwise specified	Yes

VI Diseases of the nervous system

Code	Description	Extended
G00	Bacterial meningitis, not elsewhere classified including bacterial arachnoiditis, leptomeningitis, meningitis and pachymeningitis	
G01	Meningitis in bacterial diseases classified elsewhere	
G03	Meningitis due to other and unspecified causes Including: arachnoiditis, leptomeningitis, meningitis, pachymeningitis due to other and unspecified causes. Excludes: meningoencephalitis, meningomyelitis.	
G04	Encephalitis, myelitis and encephalomyelitis	
G05	Encephalitis, myelitis and encephalomyelitis in diseases classified elsewhere	
G06	Intracranial and intraspinal abscess and granuloma	
G12	Spinal muscular atrophy and related syndromes	
G20	Parkinson disease	

G21	Secondary parkinsonism	
G25	Other extrapyramidal and movement disorders	
G31	Other degenerative diseases of nervous system, not elsewhere classified	
G35	Multiple sclerosis	
G37	Other demyelinating diseases of central nervous system, Diffuse sclerosis Periaxial encephalitis	
G40	Epilepsy	
G43	Migraine	
G46	<null></null>	
G51	Facial nerve disorders	
G57	Mononeuropathies of lower limb	
G61	Inflammatory polyneuropathy	
G62	Other polyneuropathies	
G70	Myasthenia gravis and other myoneural disorders	
G71	Primary disorders of muscles	
G80	Cerebral palsy	
G81	Hemiplegia	
G82	Paraplegia and tetraplegia	
G83	Other paralytic syndromes	
G91	Hydrocephalus	
G93	Other disorders of brain	Yes
G95	Other diseases of spinal cord	
G98	Other disorders of nervous system, not elsewhere classified	
G99	Other disorders of nervous system in diseases classified elsewhere	

VII Diseases of the eye and adnexa

Code	Description	Extended
H26	Other cataract	
H44	Disorders of globe	
H46	Optic neuritis	
H47	Other disorders of optic [2nd] nerve and visual pathways	
H54	Visual impairment including blindness (binocular or monocular)	
H57	Other disorders of eye and adnexa	

VIII Diseases of the ear and mastoid process

Code	Description	Extended
H66	Suppurative and unspecified otitis media	
H67	Otitis media in diseases classified elsewhere	
H70	Mastoiditis and related conditions	
H83	Other diseases of inner ear	
H91	Other hearing loss	
H93	Other disorders of ear, not elsewhere classified	

IX Diseases of the circulatory system

Code	Description	Extended
100	Rheumatic fever without mention of heart involvement	
101	Rheumatic fever with heart involvement	
105	Rheumatic mitral valve diseases	
109	Other rheumatic heart diseases	
I10	Essential (primary) hypertension	
I12	Hypertensive renal disease	
120	Angina pectoris	Yes
I21	Acute myocardial infarction	
123	Certain current complications following acute myocardial infarction	
124	Other acute ischaemic heart diseases	
125	Chronic ischaemic heart disease	
126	Pulmonary embolism	
127	Other pulmonary heart diseases	
128	Other diseases of pulmonary vessels	
130	Acute pericarditis	
I31	Other diseases of pericardium	
133	Acute and subacute endocarditis	
134	Nonrheumatic mitral valve disorders	
135	Nonrheumatic aortic valve disorders	
138	Endocarditis, valve unspecified	
140	Acute myocarditis	
145	Other conduction disorders, Heart block NOS, Stokes-Adams syndrome	
146	Cardiac arrest	
149	Other cardiac arrhythmias	
150	Heart failure	
I51	Complications and ill-defined descriptions of heart disease	
160	Subarachnoid haemorrhage	
161	Intracerebral haemorrhage	
162	Other nontraumatic intracranial haemorrhage	
163	Cerebral infarction	
164	Stroke, not specified as haemorrhage or infarction	
165	Occlusion and stenosis of precerebral arteries, not resulting in cerebral infarction	
166	Occlusion and stenosis of cerebral arteries, not resulting in cerebral infarction	
167	Other cerebrovascular diseases	
169	Sequelae of cerebrovascular disease	
170	Atherosclerosis	
I71	Aortic aneurysm and dissection	Yes
172	Other aneurysm and dissection	
173	Other peripheral vascular diseases	

174	Arterial embolism and thrombosis	
177	Other disorders of arteries and arterioles	
180	Phlebitis and thrombophlebitis	
182	Other venous embolism and thrombosis	
183	Varicose veins of lower extremities	
184	Hemorrhoids	
185	Oesophageal varices	
186	Varicose veins of other sites	
187	Other disorders of veins	
188	Nonspecific lymphadenitis	Yes
189	Other noninfective disorders of lymphatic vessels and lymph nodes	
196	Shortness of breath	Yes
199	Other and unspecified disorders of circulatory system	Yes

X Diseases of the respiratory system

Code	Description	Extended
J00	Acute nasopharyngitis [common cold]	
J02	Acute pharyngitis	Yes
J03	Acute tonsillitis	
J04	Acute laryngitis and tracheitis	
J05	Acute obstructive laryngitis [croup] and epiglottitis	
J06	Acute upper respiratory infections of multiple and unspecified sites	
J10	Influenza due to other identified influenza virus	
J11	Influenza, virus not identified	
J15	Bacterial pneumonia, not elsewhere classified	
J18	Pneumonia, organism unspecified	Yes
J19	Chest fever	Yes
J20	Acute bronchitis, tracheobronchitis, acute	
J22	Unspecified acute lower respiratory infection	
J30	Vasomotor and allergic rhinitis	
J31	Chronic rhinitis, nasopharyngitis and pharyngitis	
J32	Chronic sinusitis, abscess empyema infection suppuration, excludes acute sinusitis	
J33	Nasal polyp	
J35	Chronic diseases of tonsils and adenoids	
J36	Peritonsillar abscess	
J37	Chronic laryngitis and laryngotracheitis	
J38	Diseases of vocal cords and larynx, not elsewhere classified	
J39	Other diseases of upper respiratory tract	Yes
J40	Bronchitis, not specified as acute or chronic, Tracheobronchitis NOS	
J42	Unspecified chronic bronchitis	
J43	Emphysema	
J45	Asthma	

J47	Bronchiectasis, Bronchiolectasis	
J60	Coalworker pneumoconiosis	
J64	Unspecified pneumoconiosis	
J66	Airway disease due to specific organic dust	
J67	Hypersensitivity pneumonitis due to organic dust	
J69	Pneumonitis due to solids and liquids	
J81	Pulmonary oedema	
J84	Other interstitial pulmonary diseases	
J85	Abscess of lung and mediastinum	
J86	Pyothorax, empyema pyopneumothorax, Excludes: due to tuberculosis	
J90	Pleural effusion, not elsewhere classified, Pleurisy with effusion	
J93	Pneumothorax, Pneumothorax, unspecified, Spontaneous tension pneumothorax	
J94	Other pleural conditions	
J96	Respiratory failure, not elsewhere classified, Acute or chronic respiratory failure, Respiratory failure, unspecified.	
J98	Other respiratory disorders	

XI Diseases of the digestive system

Code	Description	Extended
К07	Dentofacial anomalies [including malocclusion]	
К08	Other disorders of teeth and supporting structures	
K11	Diseases of salivary glands	
K12	Stomatitis and related lesions	
K13	Other diseases of lip and oral mucosa	
K14	Diseases of tongue	
K20	Oesophagitis	
K22	Other diseases of oesophagus	
K25	Gastric ulcer	
K26	Duodenal ulcer	
K27	Peptic ulcer, site unspecified	
K29	Gastritis and duodenitis	
K30	Functional dyspepsia	
K31	Other diseases of stomach and duodenum	
K35	Acute appendicitis	
К36	Other appendicitis	
K40	Inguinal hernia	
K41	Femoral hernia, Unilateral or unspecified femoral hernia, without obstruction or gangrene	
K42	Umbilical hernia	
K43	Ventral hernia	
K44	Diaphragmatic hernia, hiatus hernia (oesophageal)(sliding) paraoesophageal hernia. Excludes: congenital hernia	
K45	Umbilical hernia	

K46	Unspecified abdominal hernia	
K50	Crohn disease [regional enteritis]	
K51	Ulcerative colitis	
K52	Other noninfective gastroenteritis and colitis	
K55	Vascular disorders of intestine	
K56	Paralytic ileus and intestinal obstruction without hernia	
K57	Diverticular disease of intestine	
K59	Other functional intestinal disorders	
K60	Fissure and fistula of anal and rectal regions	
K62	Other diseases of anus and rectum	
K63	Other diseases of intestine	Yes
K65	Peritonitis	
K67	Disorders of peritoneum in infectious diseases classified elsewhere	
K70	Alcoholic liver disease	
K71	Toxic liver disease	
K72	Hepatic failure, not elsewhere classified	
K73	Chronic hepatitis, not elsewhere classified	
K74	Fibrosis and cirrhosis of liver	
K75	Other inflammatory liver diseases	
K76	Other diseases of liver	
K80	Cholelithiasis	
K81	Cholecystitis	
K82	Other diseases of gallbladder	
K83	Other diseases of biliary tract	
K85	Acute pancreatitis	
K86	Other diseases of pancreas, Chronic pancreatitis, Pancreatic infantilism, Pancreatic necrosis	
К90	Intestinal malabsorption	
К92	Other diseases of digestive system	Yes

XII Diseases of the skin and subcutaneous tissue

Code	Description
L00	Staphylococcal scalded skin syndrome
L01	Impetigo
L02	Cutaneous abscess, furuncle and carbuncle
L10	Pemphigus
L20	Atopic dermatitis
L23	Allergic contact dermatitis
L29	Pruritus
L30	Other dermatitis
L40	Psoriasis
L50	Urticaria
L70	Acne

L72	Follicular cysts of skin and subcutaneous tissue
L85	Other epidermal thickening
L89	Decubitus ulcer and pressure area
L93	Lupus erythematosus
L94	Other localized connective tissue disorders
L97	Ulcer of lower limb, not elsewhere classified
L98	Other disorders of skin and subcutaneous tissue, not elsewhere classified

XIII Diseases of the musculoskeletal system and connective tissue

Code	Description	Extended
M05	Seropositive rheumatoid arthritis	
M06	Other rheumatoid arthritis, Inflammatory polyarthropathy, Rheumatoid arthritis unspecified, Excludes polyarthritis NOS.	
M10	Gout	
M13	Other arthritis, Polyarthritis unspecified, Arthritis unspecified	
M15	Polyarthrosis, arthrosis with mention of more than one site	
M16	Coxarthrosis [arthrosis of hip]	
M25	Other joint disorders, not elsewhere classified	
M31	Other necrotizing vasculopathies, Thrombotic thrombocytopenic purpura	
M33	Dermatopolymyositis	
M35	Other systemic involvement of connective tissue	
M40	Kyphosis and lordosis	
M41	Scoliosis	
M43	Other deforming dorsopathies	
M45	Ankylosing spondylitis	
M46	Other inflammatory spondylopathies	
M47	Spondylosis	
M50	Cervical disc disorders	
M53	Other dorsopathies, not elsewhere classified	
M54	Dorsalgia	
M62	Other disorders of muscle	
M77	Other enthesopathies, epicondylitis (Tennis elbow), Periarthritis of wrist, Bone spur NOS, Capsulitis NOS, Periarthritis NOS, Tendinitis NOS	
M79	Other soft tissue disorders, not elsewhere classified	Yes
M81	Osteoporosis without pathological fracture	
M86	Osteomyelitis	
M87	Osteonecrosis	
M94	Other disorders of cartilage	
M99	Biomechanical lesions, not elsewhere classified	Yes

XIV Diseases of the genitourinary system

Code	Description	Extende
N00	Acute nephritic syndrome	
N03	Chronic nephritic syndrome	
N05	Unspecified nephritic syndrome	
N10	Acute tubulo-interstitial nephritis	
N11	Chronic tubulo-interstitial nephritis	
N12	Tubulo-interstitial nephritis, not specified as acute or chronic	
N13	Obstructive and reflux uropathy	
N15	Other renal tubulo-interstitial diseases	
N17	Acute renal failure	
N17	Acute renal failure	
N18	Chronic kidney disease	
N19	Unspecified kidney failure	
N20	Calculus of kidney and ureter	
N28	Other disorders of kidney and ureter, not elsewhere classified	
N30	Cystitis	
N32	Other disorders of bladder	
N34	Urethritis and urethral syndrome	
N35	Urethral stricture	
N39	Other disorders of urinary system	
N40	Hyperplasia of prostate	
N41	Inflammatory diseases of prostate	
N45	Orchitis and epididymitis	
N50	Other disorders of male genital organs	
N63	Unspecified lump in breast	
N64	Other disorders of breast	
N70	Salpingitis and oophoritis	
N71	Inflammatory disease of uterus, except cervix	
N73	Other female pelvic inflammatory diseases	
N80	Endometriosis	
N81	Female genital prolapse	
N83	Noninflammatory disorders of ovary, fallopian tube and broad ligament	
N84	Polyp of female genital tract	
N85	Other noninflammatory disorders of uterus, except cervix	
N89	Other noinflammatory disorders of vagina	
N91	Absent, scanty and rare menstruation	
N92	Excessive, frequent and irregular menstruation	
N93	Other abnormal uterine and vaginal bleeding	
N94	Pain and other conditions associated with female genital organs and menstrual cycle	

XV Pregnancy, childbirth and the puerperium

Code	Description	Extended
000	Ectopic pregnancy	
O02	Other abnormal products of conception	
O03	Spontaneous abortion	
004	Medical abortion	
O05	Other abortion	
O06	Unspecified abortion	
007	Failed attempted abortion	
008	Complications following abortion and ectopic and molar pregnancy	
014	Pre-eclampsia	
015	Eclampsia	
023	Infections of genitourinary tract in pregnancy	
044	Placenta praevia	
O66	Other obstructed labour	
071	Other obstetric trauma	
072	Postpartum haemorrhage	
073	Retained placenta and membranes, without haemorrhage	
081	Single delivery by forceps and vacuum extractor	
O83	Other assisted single delivery	
O85	Puerperal sepsis	
O86	Other puerperal infections	
087	Venous complications and haemorrhoids in the puerperium	
O88	Obstetric embolism, pulmonary emboli in pregnancy, childbirth or the puerperium	
091	Infections of breast associated with childbirth	
O92	Other disorders of breast and lactation associated with childbirth	
O95	Obstetric death of unspecified cause	
O99	Other maternal diseases classifiable elsewhere but complicating pregnancy, childbirth and the puerperium	

XVI Certain conditions originating in the perinatal period

Code	Description	Extended
P07	Disorders related to short gestation and low birth weight, not elsewhere classified	
P08	Disorders related to long gestation and high birth weight	
P13	Birth injury to skeleton	
P15	Other birth injuries	
P21	Birth asphyxia	
P28	Other respiratory conditions originating in the perinatal period	
P29	Cardiovascular disorders originating in the perinatal period	
P37	Other congenital infectious and parasitic diseases	
P38	Omphalitis of newborn with or without mild haemorrhage	

P52	Intracranial nontraumatic haemorrhage of fetus and newborn	
P54	Other neonatal haemorrhages	
P55	Haemolytic disease of fetus and newborn	
P59	Neonatal jaundice from other and unspecified causes	
P90	Convulsions of newborn	
P92	Feeding problems of newborn	
P95	Fetal death of unspecified cause	
P96	Other conditions originating in the perinatal period	Yes

XVII Congenital malformations, deformations and chromosomal abnormalities

Code	Description	Extended
Q00	Anencephaly and similar malformations	
Q01	Encephalocele	
Q03	Congenital hydrocephalus	
Q04	Other congenital malformations of brain	
Q05	Spina bifida	
Q06	Other congenital malformations of spinal cord	
Q07	Other congenital malformations of nervous system	
Q10	Congenital malformations of eyelid, lacrimal apparatus and orbit	
Q11	Anophthalmos, microphthalmos and macrophthalmos	
Q20	Congenital malformation of cardiac chambers and connections	
Q21	Congenital malformations of cardiac septa	
Q23	Congenital malformations of aortic and mitral valves, Congenital aortic: atresia, stenosis	
Q24	Other congenital malformations of heart	
Q25	Congenital malformations of great arteries	
Q28	Other congenital malformations of circulatory system	
Q34	Other congenital malformations of respiratory system	
Q35	Cleft palate	
Q39	Congenital malformations of oesophagus	
Q40	Other congenital malformations of upper alimentary tract	
Q42	Congenital absence, atresia and stenosis of large intestine	
Q43	Other congenital malformations of intestine	
Q61	Cystic kidney disease	
Q63	Other congenital malformations of kidney	
Q64	Other congenital malformations of urinary system	
Q66	Congenital deformities of feet	
Q67	Congenital musculoskeletal deformities of head, face, spine and chest	
Q68	Other congenital musculoskeletal deformities	
Q72	Reduction defects of lower limb	
Q74	Other congenital malformations of limb(s)	
Q78	Other osteochondrodysplasias	

Q82	Other congenital malformations of skin	
Q87	Other specified congenital malformation syndromes affecting multiple systems	
Q89	Other congenital malformations, not elsewhere classified	
Q90	Down syndrome	

XVIII Symptoms, signs and abnormal clinical and laboratory findings, not elsewhere classified

Code	Description	Extended
R00	Abnormalities of heart beat	
R02	Gangrene, not elsewhere classified	
R04	Haemorrhage from respiratory passages	
R05	Cough	
R06	Abnormalities of breathing	
R07	Pain in throat and chest	Yes
R09	Other symptoms and signs involving the circulatory and respiratory systems	
R10	Abdominal and pelvic pain	Yes
R11	Nausea and vomiting	
R16	Hepatomegaly and splenomegaly, not elsewhere classified	
R17	Unspecified jaundice	
R18	Ascites	
R19	Other symptoms and signs involving the digestive system and abdomen	Yes
R21	Rash and other nonspecific skin eruption	
R22	Localized swelling, mass and lump of skin and subcutaneous tissue	
R23	Other skin changes	
R25	Abnormal involuntary movements	
R30	Pain associated with micturition	
R31	Unspecified haematuria	
R32	Unspecified urinary incontinence	
R33	Retention of urine	Yes
R34	Anuria and oliguria	
R40	Somnolence, stupor and coma	
R41	Other symptoms and signs involving cognitive functions and awareness	
R42	Dizziness and giddiness	
R47	Speech disturbances, not elsewhere classified	
R51	Headache	
R52	Pain, not elsewhere classified	Yes
R53	Malaise and fatigue	
R55	Syncope and collapse	
R56	Convulsions, not elsewhere classified	
R57	Shock, not elsewhere classified, Cardiogenic shock, Septic shock, Failure of peripheral circulation NOS	
R58	Haemorrhage, not elsewhere classified	
R60	Oedema, not elsewhere classified	Yes

R61	Hyperhidrosis	
R63	Symptoms and signs concerning food and fluid intake	
R64	Cachexia	
R65	Systemic inflammatory response syndrome (SIRS)	
R69	Unspecified inflammation, Note: Unknown and unspecified diseases are excluded, excludes Children's disease and unknown children's disease	Yes
R80	Isolated proteinuria	
R95	Sudden infant death syndrome	

XIX Injury, poisoning and certain other consequences of external causes

Code	Description	Extended
S02	Fracture of skull and facial bones	
S06	Intracranial injury	
S08	Traumatic amputation of part of head	
S09	Other and unspecified injuries of head	
S12	Fracture of neck	
S13	Dislocation, sprain and strain of joints and ligaments at neck level	
S18	Traumatic amputation at neck level	
S19	Other and unspecified injuries of neck	
S20	Superficial injury of thorax	
S21	Open wound of thorax	
S22	Fracture of rib(s), sternum and thoracic spine	
S24	Injury of nerves and spinal cord at thorax level	
S25	<null></null>	
S26	Injury of heart	
S27	Injury of other and unspecified intrathoracic organs	
S29	Other and unspecified injuries of thorax	
S30	Superficial injury of abdomen, lower back and pelvis	
S31	Open wound of abdomen, lower back and pelvis	
S32	Fracture of lumbar spine and pelvis	
S36	Injury of intra-abdominal organs	
S39	Other and unspecified injuries of abdomen, lower back and pelvis	
S41	Open wound of shoulder and upper arm	
S42	Fracture of shoulder and upper arm	
S48	Traumatic amputation of shoulder and upper arm	
S52	Fracture of forearm	
S58	Traumatic amputation of forearm	
S60	Superficial injury of wrist and hand	
S62	Fracture at wrist and hand level	
S68	Traumatic amputation of wrist and hand	
S69	Other and unspecified injuries of wrist and hand	
S70	Superficial injury of hip and thigh	

S71	Open wound of hip and thigh
S72	Fracture of femur
S78	Traumatic amputation of hip and thigh
S81	Open wound of lower leg
S82	Fracture of lower leg, including ankle
S88	Traumatic amputation of lower leg
S93	Dislocation, sprain and strain of joints and ligaments at ankle and foot level
T01	Open wounds involving multiple body regions
T02	Fractures involving multiple body regions
T08	Fracture of spine, level unspecified
T09	Other injuries of spine and trunk, level unspecified
T12	Fracture of lower limb, level unspecified
T13	Other injuries of lower limb, level unspecified
T14	Injury of unspecified body region
T17	Foreign body in respiratory tract
T18	Foreign body in alimentary tract
T21	Burn and corrosion of trunk
T24	Burn and corrosion of hip and lower limb, except ankle and foot
T29	Burns and corrosions of multiple body regions
T30	Burn and corrosion, body region unspecified
T35	Frostbite involving multiple body regions and unspecified frostbite
T40	Poisoning by narcotics and psychodysleptics [hallucinogens]
T42	Poisoning by antiepileptic, sedative-hypnotic and antiparkinsonism drugs
T50	Poisoning by diuretics and other and unspecified drugs, medicaments and
	biological substances
T51	Toxic effect of alcohol
T52	Toxic effect of organic solvents
T54	Toxic effect of corrosive substances
T57	Toxic effect of other inorganic substances
T59	Toxic effect of other gases, fumes and vapours
T60	Toxic effect of pesticides
T62	Toxic effect of other noxious substances eaten as food
T63	Toxic effect of contact with venomous animals
T65	Toxic effect of other and unspecified substances
T67	Effects of heat and light
T70	Effects of air pressure and water pressure
T71 T73	Asphyxiation Effects of other deprivation
	Effects of other deprivation
T74 T75	Maltreatment syndromes Effects of other external causes
T78	Adverse effects, not elsewhere classified
T79	Certain early complications of trauma, not elsewhere classified
T81	Complications of procedures, not elsewhere classified
T87	Complications of procedures, not elsewhere classified Complications peculiar to reattachment and amputation
T88	Other complications of surgical and medical care, not elsewhere classified
100	Other complications of surgical and medical care, not eisewhere classified

XX External causes of morbidity and mortality

Code	Description	Extended
V09	Pedestrian injured in other and unspecified transport accidents	
V19	Pedal cyclist injured in other and unspecified transport accidents	
V29	Motorcycle rider injured in other and unspecified transport accidents	
V49	Car occupant injured in other and unspecified transport accidents	
V59	Occupant of pick-up truck or van injured in other and unspecified transport accidents	
V60	Occupant of heavy transport vehicle injured in collision with pedestrian or animal	
V79	Bus occupant injured in other and unspecified transport accidents	
V80	Animal-rider or occupant of animal-drawn vehicle injured in transport accident	
V81	Occupant of railway train or railway vehicle injured in transport accident	
V84	Occupant of special vehicle mainly used in agriculture injured in transport accident	
V87	Traffic accident of specified type but victim's mode of transport unknown	
V88	Nontraffic accident of specified type but victim's mode of transport unknown	
V89	Motor- or nonmotor-vehicle accident, type of vehicle unspecified	
V90	Accident to watercraft causing drowning and submersion	
V91	Accident to watercraft causing other injury	
V92	Water-transport-related drowning and submersion without accident to watercraft	
V93	Accident on board watercraft without accident to watercraft, not causing drowning and submersion	
V95	Accident to powered aircraft causing injury to occupant	
V99	Unspecified transport accident	
W00	Fall on same level involving ice and snow	
W01	Fall on same level from slipping, tripping and stumbling	
W09	Fall involving playground equipment	
W10	Fall on and from stairs and steps	
W11	Fall on and from ladder	
W12	Fall on and from scaffolding	
W13	Fall from, out of or through building or structure	
W14	Fall from tree	
W15	Fall from cliff	
W17	Other fall from one level to another	
W19	Unspecified fall	
W20	Struck by thrown, projected or falling object	
W22	Striking against or struck by other objects	
W23	Caught, crushed, jammed or pinched in or between objects	
W24	Contact with lifting and transmission devices, not elsewhere classified	

W26 Contact with knife, sword or dagger W27 Contact with nonpowered hand tool W30 Contact with agricultural machinery W31 Contact with other and unspecified machinery	
W30 Contact with agricultural machinery	
·	
W32 Handgun discharge, gun for single hand use: pistol, revolver	
W33 Rifle, shotgun and larger firearm discharge	
W34 Discharge from other and unspecified firearms	
W38 Explosion and rupture of other specified pressurized devices	
W40 Explosion of other materials	
W44 Foreign body entering into or through eye or natural orifice	
W45 Foreign body or object entering through skin	
W49 Exposure to other and unspecified inanimate mechanical forces	
W53 Bitten by rat	
W55 Bitten or struck by other mammals	
W57 Bitten or stung by nonvenomous insect and other nonvenomous	
arthropods	
W59 Bitten or crushed by other reptiles	
W64 Exposure to other and unspecified animate mechanical forces	
W69 Drowning and submersion while in natural water	
W70 Drowning and submersion following fall into natural water	
W73 Other specified drowning and submersion	
W74 Unspecified drowning and submersion	
W75 Accidental suffocation and strangulation in bed	
W76 Other accidental hanging and strangulation	
W77 Threat to breathing due to cave-in, falling earth and other substances	
W79 Inhalation and ingestion of food causing obstruction of respiratory tract	
W80 Inhalation and ingestion of other objects causing obstruction of respiratory tract	
W81 Confined to or trapped in a low-oxygen environment	
W83 Other specified threats to breathing	
W84 Unspecified threat to breathing	
W87 Exposure to unspecified electric current	
X00 Exposure to uncontrolled fire in building or structure	
X01 Exposure to uncontrolled fire, not in building or structure	
X02 Exposure to controlled fire in building or structure	
X03 Exposure to controlled fire, not in building or structure	
X06 Exposure to ignition or melting of other clothing and apparel	
X08 Exposure to other specified smoke, fire and flames	
X09 Exposure to unspecified smoke, fire and flames	
X10 Contact with hot drinks, food, fats and cooking oils	
X11 Contact with hot tap-water	
X12 Contact with other hot fluids	
X13 Contact with steam and hot vapours	
X15 Contact with hot household appliances	
X19 Contact with other and unspecified heat and hot substances	

X20	Contact with venomous snakes and lizards	
X28	Contact with other specified venomous plants	
X31	Exposure to excessive natural cold	
X33	Victim of lightning	
X36	Victim of avalanche, landslide and other earth movements	
X37	Victim of cataclysmic storm	
X47	Accidental poisoning by and exposure to other gases and vapours	
X49	Accidental poisoning by and exposure to other and unspecified chemicals	
	and noxious substances	
X50	Overexertion and strenuous or repetitive movements	
X54	Lack of water	
X57	Unspecified privation	
X58	Exposure to other specified factors	
X59	Exposure to unspecified factor	
X60	Intentional self-poisoning by and exposure to nonopioid analgesics,	
	antipyretics and antirheumatics	
X62	Intentional self-poisoning by and exposure to narcotics and	
X64	psychodysleptics [hallucinogens], not elsewhere classified Intentional self-poisoning by and exposure to other and unspecified drugs,	
/\U T	medicaments and biological substances	
X67	Intentional self-poisoning by and exposure to other gases and vapours	
X69	Intentional self-poisoning by and exposure to other and unspecified	
	chemicals and noxious substances	
X70	Intentional self-harm by hanging, strangulation and suffocation	
X71	Intentional self-harm by drowning and submersion	
X72	Intentional self-harm by handgun discharge	
X75	Intentional self-harm by explosive material	
X76	Intentional self-harm by smoke, fire and flames	
X78	Intentional self-harm by sharp object	
X80	Intentional self-harm by jumping from a high place	
X81	Intentional self-harm by jumping or lying before moving object	
X82	Intentional self-harm by crashing of motor vehicle	
X83	Intentional self-harm by other specified means	
X84	Intentional self-harm by unspecified means	
X85	Assault by drugs, medicaments and biological substances	
X91	Assault by hanging, strangulation and suffocation	
X92	Assault by drowning and submersion	
X93	Assault by handgun discharge	
X95	Assault by other and unspecified firearm discharge	
X99	Assault by sharp object. Includes: stabbed NOS	
Y00	Assault by blunt object	
Y01	Assault by pushing from high place	
Y04	Assault by bodily force	
Y06	Neglect and abandonment	
Y07	Other maltreatment	
Y09	Assault by unspecified means	

Y20	Hanging, strangulation and suffocation, undetermined intent
Y24	Other and unspecified firearm discharge, undetermined intent
Y28	Contact with sharp object, undetermined intent
Y29	Contact with blunt object, undetermined intent
Y30	Falling, jumping or pushed from a high place, undetermined intent
Y34	Unspecified event, undetermined intent
Y35	Legal intervention
Y36	Operations of war
Y69	Unspecified misadventure during surgical and medical care
Y98	Lifestyle-related condition

XXI Factors influencing health status and contact with health services

Code	Description	Extended
Z59	Problems related to housing and economic circumstances	
Z72	Problems related to lifestyle	
Z93	Artificial opening status, Tracheostomy status, Gastrostomy status, Ileostomy status, Colostomy status	